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. IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE VIRGIN ISLANDS
DIVISION OF ST. THOMAS AND ST. JOHN

" CIVIL NO. 2002-100

Plaintiff, )

| | )

ILEASE BARTLETTE, ) ACTION FOR DAMAGES
) BREACH OF CONTRACT

Pro Se ) DISCRIMINATION, AND
) WRONGFUL DISCHARGE
)

Vs )

: )

KMART CORPORATION, ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
)
) w o

L
23 L

INSTRUCTIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT CLAIMS UNDER THE AMERICANS
WITH DISABILITIES ACT.

Instructions:

9.0-945

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CLAIMS UNDER THE AGE DISCRIMINATION IN
EMPLOYMENT ACT

Instructions:

8.0-845




L

ADA Employment Claims — Introductory Instructions

In this case plaintiff, Ilease Bartlette, makes a claim based on federal law known

as Americans with Disability Act,

ADA,

which will be referred to in these instructions as the

Under the ADA, an employer may not deprive a person with a disability of an

employment opportunity because of thai disability, if that person is able, with reasonable

accommodation if niecessary, to perform the essentials of the job. Terms such as

“disability”, “qualified individual” and reasonable accommodation™ are defined by the

ADA and I will instruct You on the meaning of those terms.

(Plaintiff] claim under the ADA is that [she] was [describe the employment action
at issue] plaintiff wag placed on probation wrongful discharge and terminated by the
defendant, Kmart, because of [plaintiff’s] [describe alleged disability] mental jliness.

[Defendant] denies [plaintiff's] claims. Further, [defendant] asserts that [describe

any affirmative] defenses,

(a) Employer practices. It shall be unlawfu for an employer —

1. To fail to refuse to hire or to discharge any individual or otherwise

discriminate againast any individual with respect to his compensation, terms,

conditions or privileges of employment, because of such individuals age; or

disability.

As you listen lo these instructions, please keep in mind that many of the terms I

will use, and you will need to apply, have a special meaning under the ADA. So please

remember to consider the specific definitions I Eave you, rather than using your own

opinion of what these terms mean,
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Elemeats of an ADA Claim
Disparate Treatment — Mixed - Motive

In this case [plaintiff] is alleging that [defendant] [describe alleged disparate
treatment] it had been a wrongful discharge termination of her employment.

Plaintiff was discharéed without any warning or any reprimand for ﬁny poor job
performance and was discharged despite the fact that the defendant was requested to
accommodate her disability.' The defendant was well aware and had been specifically
informed of her mental disability, but took no action to address the issues of
accommodation raised by the plaintiff or attempted to resolve the matter or issues.
Breaks had been a pmb]erp and a concern. Plaintiff requested through Ms. Williams her
manager, to see Mr. Newton the General Store Manager. Plaintiff told Mr. Newton that
her breaks have been denied. M. Newton became very angry thh plaintiff and turned
~ her concern into a 30- ~day probation to come up with 10 rings per minute and if she ; 1s not
able to come up with 10 rings per minute he will terminate her from her employment,
Having a disability does not mean that one is not able. Plajntiff requested training for the
Niew system since no reading materials Were given to her not even a single explanation
about the new System, that cashiers were having problems W1th Mr. Newton verbally
dcmcd plaintiff the accommodation and she proceeded to remind him of her struggles
with mental illness and reminded him that she had a qualified disability for which she
seeks the accommodation, Plaintifr was denied the acconunudanon She requested Mr.
Newton to transfer her to the sales floor. That too was denied.- Mr. Newton said any
moving will be through the door and sent plaintiff away from his presence to Tracy to

write up the term of probation and for her to respond to the term and to sign and date it.
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Mr. Newton reviewed what we both parties wrote and totally ignored the reminder given
in written form. With open defiance against the law and plaintiff's legal rights, he chose
not to change his mind to accommodate her. What he should have done was to change
his ways and to accommeodate her. Seeing in written form, another time, the talked about
aécommodation and plaintiff having a disability. The defendant had another opportunity
to change his mind and to change the order but he did not. Mr. Newton was willful and
he intentionally disregarded the request when Tracy took the document to him. Mr.
Newton however stripped plaintiff of everything through Tracy that belong to Kmart. Tt
caused embarrassment and a feeling of emptiness came over plaintiff experiencing her
first time termination and the abuse of authority upon her.

Kmart was not careful nor mindful to return plaintiff’s salary, neither the 8 hours
owed to her in overtime payment since plaintiff worked on a ™ day, nor benefits owed to
her. Plaintiff was sent away. She was asked to Jeave, Empty handed and confused by

embarrassment. As a peer advocate she knew that the treatment was wrong. Plaintiff

cashiers was t-::nnmated and thcy arc still employed.

Plaintiff js tcrmmated and is still unemployed since the texmmatmn of [plamtlft]
In order for [plalntlff] fo recover on thls discrimination claim against [defendant],
[plaintiff] must prove that [defendant] intentionally discriminated against [plaintiff). This

means that [plaintiff] must prove that [her] [disability] was a motivating factor in

{defendant’s] decision [describe action] to terminate and wrongfully discharged her.
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The record shows cashiers had problems with the new system call 10 rings per
minute;

No training materials were given not even a single explanation gbhout the
system was offered;

Plaintiff 1o include other cashjers were waiting for explanation about thc néw
system;

Of the 7 cashicrs, she knew plaintiff was the only one that had a disability and
productivify better than the other 6 cashiers as was told by Mr. Newton
himself in the associates moming meeting;

Plaintiff was the only one placed on probation and treated differently;

The only 6nc harassed on May 14, 2001;

The only one given an ultimaturn that could end g terminating if she doesn’t
get the job done; |

The only one given a direct impossibility to get the job done without training;
Tha only one to request training and was deﬁied.

The only one to face punishment for the new system;

The only one placed on probation and was not given the opportunity to serve
it. And without reason whose probation tumed into termination. Dcfendaﬁt
did not give plaintiff a chance to succeed as the law requires;

Plaintiff was the only one ;cquestiﬁg an accommodation to help her succeed
and was denied a reasonable request of an accommodatidn that would have
allowed her to keep the job that she already had or to be transferred back to

the sales floor.




[ 6/09 12:50:53 Desc
- Doc 31952-9 Filed 04/30/09 Entered 05/0
Case 0z-0z4ra Document Continued Page 18 of 50

To prevail on this claim, [plaintiff] must prove ali of the following by a
preponderance of the evidence:
First. [Plaintiff] has a “disability” within the meaning of ADA for 31 years,

- Second; [Plaintiff] is a “qualified individual” able to perform the essential

functions of [specify the Job or position sort] a cashier. For about 2 years, she
performed her duty.

Third: [Plaintiff's] [disability] was a motivating factor in [defendant’s] decision

[describe action] plaintiff was harassed, given 30 days probationary term, then the
terms were taken ';i\&ay because she requested the accommodation. The defendant
then terminated [plaintiff] whereby ending her employment at Kmart. Defendant
failed to give her a fair chance as is required by law to do her work with or
without an ac:commodﬁtion, and discriminated on the basis of her disability.
Although [plaintiff] myst prove that [defendant] acted with the intent to
discriminate on the basis of & disability, [plaintiff] is not required to prove that
- [defendant] acted with the particular intent to viblate [plaintiffs] federal rights under the
" ADA, |
| In showing that [plaintiff’s] [disability] was a motivating factor for [defendant’s]
action, [plaintiff] is not required to prove fhat [her] [disability] was the sole motivation or
even the primary motivation for [defendant’s] decision. [Plaintiff] need only prove that
[the disability] playcd‘ a motivating part in [defendant’s] decision even though other
factors may also have motivated [defendant]l. |
I will now provide you with more explicit instructions on the following statutory

terms:
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1. “Disability” — Instruction 9.2.1
“Disability means a physical/mental impairment that ‘;substantially limits
a major life activity.
1. “Qualified” — See Instructions 92.2]
A “qualified individual” is one wha with or without reasonable
accommodation can perfonn.thé essential function of the

employment position that such individual holds or desires.

[For use where defendaﬁt sets forth a “same decisio.n” afﬂrmﬁtive defense:

If you find that [defendant’s) treatment of [plaintiff] was motivated by both
discriminatory and lawful reasons, you must decide whether [plaintiff] is not entitled to
damages if [defendant] proves by a preponderance of the evidence that [defendant] would
have treated [plaintiff) thc same even if [p]aintiffs] [disability] had Iplaycd no role in the

employment decision.]
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Elements of an ADA Claim - Reasonable Accommodation

In this case [plaintiff] claims that [defendant] failed to provide a rcasonable
accommodation for [plaintiff]. The ADA provides that an employer may not deny

| employment opportunities to a qualified individual with a disability if that denial is based

on the need of the employer to make reasonable accommodation to that individual’s
disability,

To prevail on this claim, [plaintiff] must prove all of the following by a
preponderance of the evidence:

First; [Plaintiff] has a “disability” within the meaning of ADA.

- Second: [Plaintiff] is a “qualified individual” able to perform the essential
functions of [spcciff the job or position sought] cashier.

Third:. [Defendant] was informed of the need for an accommodation of [plaintiff]

due fo a disabillity.‘ [Note that there is no requirement that a request be made for a
particular or specific accommodation; it is enough to satisfy this fl:lement‘that
[defendant] was informed of [plaintiff’s] basic need for an accommodation. ]
Fourth: Providing [specify the accommodation(s) in dispute in thécase] training
for a new system, or relocation to the sales floor would have been reasonahlie,
| meaning that the costs of that accommodation would not have clearly‘excccded its
benefits.
Fifth: [Defendant] failed to provide {specify the accommodation(s) in dipute in
the case] training using a new system, or relocation to the sales floor. |
[1 will now provide you with more explicit instructions on the fol]oWing statutory

terms;
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L. *“Disability” - Instruction 9.2.1
Under the ADA the term “Disability” means a physical/mental impairment
that “substantially” limits a major life activity. |

2. “Qualified” - see instruction 9.2.2] |

A “qualified individual” is one who with or without reasonable
accommodation can perform: the essential function of the employment
position that such individual holds or desires,

[In deciding whether [plaintiff] was denied a reasonable accommodation, you
tnust kecp in mind that [defendant] is not obligated to provide a specific accommodation
simple because it was requested by [plaintiff]. [Plaintiff] may not insist on a particular
accommodation if another reasonable accommodation was offércd. The question is
whether [defendant] failed to provide any reasonable accommodation of [plaintfﬂ"s]
disability.] | |

Under the ADA, a reasonable accommodation may include, but it is not limited
to, the following:

[Set forth any of the following that are supported by the evidence:

1. Making existing faci!itics used by employees readily accessible to and usable

by [plaintiff];

2. Job rcstmcturing;

3. Reassignment to a vacant posiﬁon for which [plaintiff] is qualified;

4. Provision of qualified readers or intgrpreters and

3. Other similar accommodations for individuals with (plaintiff’s] disability.]
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Note, however, that a “reasonable accommodation” does not require {defendant] to do
any of the following:

[Sct forth any of the following that are raised by the evidence:

1. Change or climinate any essential function of employment;

2. Shift any essential function of employment to other employees;

3. Create a new position for [plaintiff];

4. Promote [plaintiff];

5. Reduce productivity standards.

[On the other hand, [defendant's] acmmmodétion is not “reasonablc” under the
ADA if [plaintiff] was forced to change to a less favorable job and a reasonable
accommeodation could have been made that would have allowed [plaintiff] to perform the
essential functions of the job that [she] already had, [Nor is an accommodation to a new
position reasonable if [plaintiff] is not qualified to peffonn the essential functions of that
pésition.]]
[For use where a jury question is raised about the interactive process:

The intent of the ADA, is that there be an interactive process between the
cmployér and the employee [applicant] to determine whether there is a reasonable

accommodation that would allow the employee [applicant] to perform the essential

functions of the job, Both the employer and the employee [applicant] must cooperate in
this interactive process in good faith, once the employer has been informed of the
employee’s [applicant’s] request for a reasonable accommodation.

Neither party can win this case simple because the other did not cooperate in an

interactive process. But you may consider whether a party cooperated in this process in
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good faith in evaluating the merit of that Party’s ¢laim that a reasonable accommodation
did not exist.]
[For use where a previous accommodation has been provided:

The fact that [defendant] may have offered certain accommodations to an
employee or employecs in the past does not mean that the same accommodations must be
forever extended to [plaintiff] or that those accommodations are necessarily reasonable
under the ADA. Otherwise, an employer would be reluctant to offer benefits or
concessions to disabled employees for fear that, by once providing the henefit or
concession, the employer would forever be required to provide that accommodation.
Thus, the fact that an accommodation that [plaintiff] argues for has been provided by
[defendant] in the past to [plaintiff], or fo another disabled employee, might be relevant
but does not necessarily mean that the particular accommodation is a reasonable one in
this case. Instead, you must determine its reasonableness under all the evidence in the
case.]

[For use when there is a jury question on “undue hardship”:

If you find that [plaintiff) has proved the four elements I have described to you by
a preponderance of the evidence, then you must consider [defendant’s] defense,
[Defendant] contends that providing an accommodation would cause an undue hardship
on the operation of [defendant’s] business. Under the ADA, [defendant] does not need to
accommodate [plaintiff] if it would cause an “undue hardship” to its business. An
“undue hardship™ is something so costly or so disruptive that it would fundamentally

change the way that [defendant] runs its business,

10




= Case 02-02474 Doc 31952 9 Filed 04/30/09 Entered 05/06/09 12:50:53 Desc

Document Continued Page 24 of 50

Defendant must prove to you by a preponderance of the evidence that [describe

accommodation] would be an “undue hardship”. In deciding this issue, you should

consider the following factors:

1.

2,

The nature and cost of the accommodation.

[Defendant’s) overall financial resources. This might include the size of its

business, the number of people it employs, and the types of facilities it runs,
The financial resources of the facility where the accommodation would be
made. This might include the number of people who work there and the
impact that the accommodation would have on its operations and cost.

The way that [defendant] conducts its operations. This might include its
workforce structure; the location of its facility where the accommodation
would be made compared to [defendant’s] other facilities; and the relationship
between or among those facilities.

The impact of (specify accommodation) training using a new system, or
relocation to the sales floor on the operation of the facility, including the
impact on the ability of other employees to perform their duties and the

impact on the facility’s ability to conduct business.

[List any factor supported by the evidence.] -

Defendant was ‘infurmcd of the néed for an accommodation. It was enough to
satisfy this elcment that defendant was informed.

A reasonable acooﬁmodation could have been made that would have allowed her

the job that she already had. Yes. An employer may switch the marginal function of two

11
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(or more) employees in order to restructure a Job as a reasonable accommodation, issuc
training manuals, teachers, etc.

Ba.rriers were set up against plaintiff. The defendant voiced in her face, “There'll
be no accommodation for you”, Then came the look of scorn that emerged from his cyes
and actually laughed at her situation. Finally, termination and the wrongful discharge.

Reasonable accommodation removes workplace barriers for individuals with
disabilities. Reasonable accommodation must be provided to qualified employees
regardless of whether they work part-time or full-time or are considered “probationary”,
Hence, plaintiff reports she was harassed, retaliated, considered probationary, terminated,
wrongfully discharged, and treated differently than white employees or non-disable
persons employed by the defendant. The defendant was well informed of her mental
disability, but took no action to address the issue of accornmodation raised by the |
plaintiff or atternpt to resolve the matter or issues. Plaintiff believes she was wrongfully
discharged without any warning or reﬁrimand for any poor job performance and shé was .
discharged despite the fact that the defendant was requested to accommodate her
disability. Plaintiff filed charges with the VI Dept of Labor and the VI Dept of Labor
filed with EEOC who sent ht_;-.r the right to sue lcttcr; Look dcc[ily with plaintiff at other
important factors:

1. The nature and cost of the accommodation,

2. [Defendant] nvefall financial resources,

3. The financial resources of the facility where the accommodation would be

made (Tutu Park 3829 store).

12
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4. The way that [defendaﬁt] conducts its operation. The workforce structure,
compare to [defendant’s] other facilities (here and America even foreign
lands) the relationship between and among thdse facilities.

5. The impact of (specify accommodation) training using a new system, or
relocation to the sales floor on the operation of the facility, the impact on the
ability of other employees to perform their duties and the impact on the
facility’s ability to conduct its business,

If you find that [defendant] has proved by a preponderance of the evidence that

[specify accommodation] training for a new system, or relocation to the sales floor would

be an undue hardship, then you must find for [defendant].]

13
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Elements of an ADA Claim
Harassment - Hostile Work Environment — Tangible Employment Action

[Plaintiff] claims that [she] was subjected to harassment by [names] Sylvia
Williams, Selwyn Scatliffe, George Newton and that this harassment was motivated by
[plaintiff’s] [disability/request for accommodation.]

[Employer] is liable for the actions of [names] Sylvia Williams, Selwyn Scatliffe,
and George Newton in plaintiff's claim of harassment if [plaintiff] proves all of the
following elements by a preponderance of the evidence:

Eirst: [Plaintiff] has a “disability” within the meaning of the ADA; and has a -

record of such a disability;

| Second; [Plaintiff] is a “qualified individual” within the meaning of the ADA;
able to do the job; |

Third: {Plaintiff] was subjected to [describe alleged conduct or conditions giving

tise to plaintiff's claim plaintiff requested through Ms. Williams, her checkouts

manager, to see Mr. Newton, the General Manager. Plaintiff told Mr. Newton
that her breaks have been denied and a concern to her. Mr. Newton became very
angry with plaintiff and cuts across her when she made an attempt to speak. Her
concerns addressing them appeared to have been a mistake. Mr, Newton came to
the point of harassing plaintiff, and her good faith meeting seemed to have been

turned into something unexpected. Mr. Newton retaliated by giving plaintiff a 30-

day probationary sentence. Plaintiff was to be able (o do 10 rings per minute in

30 days and if plaintiff was unable to do it, at the end of the 30 days her

employment will be terminated. Prior to this probationary period plaintiff was not

14
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given any warning or any reprimand for any poor job performance. There was
absolutely no training given to explain the new systern in use. Be assured
plaintiff questioned and requested the knowledge. No reading materials were
given, no expert professional explanation, no education from management,
however the essential function was not affected it was business as usual. Meaning
the system did not prevent the cash register to perform in said perfection.
Plaintiff requested the training that one should receive when a new system is used
and there in Mr, Newton’s presence he refused to tell her, show her, or cducate
her even though Mr. Newton told plaintiff he knows. Plaintiff wanted still to keep
her job and was ready to serve the 30 days probation so plaintiff requested from
Mr. Newton an accommodation after reminding him of her struggles with mental
illness and she has a disability. Plaintiff asked him to review the record kept on
file, Mr. Newton still had not changed his mind but sent her to meet Tracy Neille
for she preceded plaintiff to Human Resource Office to document the order.
Tracy gava plaintiff the order to read and to write her comments. Plaintiff was
again offering Mr. Newton another chance to do right by her and to comply with
the ADA laws that protects her; concerning hislwillfulness to deny her an
accommodation, Plaintiff named the words accommodation and disability in a
manner for him to read and understand. Tracy took the document to Mr. Newton
in his office. Mr. Newton returned raged with anger towards plaintiff shouted in
her face there’ll be no accommodation for you. Tracy is ﬁxing your separation
papers. As Mr. Newton said those words a look of hate emerged {rom his eyes

and he actually laughed at plaintiff's situation. Plaintiff was very embarrassed
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from the abuse. She was never ever been terminated before and was never treated
this way by anyone. Plaintiff recoiled from the anger and winced away in great
emotional pain and from the distress she was feeling from Mr. Newton's actions.
Plaintiff was not allowed to serve the probationary period of 30 days and was
instead terminated on May 14, 2001. So the VI Dept of Labor called it a wrongful
discharge.- No reason was given to plaintiff for her termination from the
defendant. Plaintiff’s request for an accommodation was denied.

Fourth: [Names} Sylvia Williams, Selwyn Scatliffe, George Newton, conduct
was not welcomed by [plaintiff];

Fifth: [Names] Sylvia Williams, Selwyn Scatliffe, and George Newton’s conduct
was motivated by the fact that [plaintiff] has a “disability”, as defined by the
ADA [or sort an accommodation for that disability.] |

Sixth: The conduct was so severe or pervasive that a reasonable ﬁersan in
[plaintiff’s] position would find [plaintiff’s] work environment to be hostile or
abusive, This element requires you to look at the evidence from the point of view
of the reaction of a reasonable person with [plaintiff’s] disability to [plainti{f’s]
work environment.

Seventh: [Plaintiff] believed [her) work environment to be hostile or abusive as a
result of [names] Sylvia Williams, Selwyn Scatliffe, George Newton’s conduct.
Eighth: [Plaintiff] suffered an adverse “tangible employment action” as a result
of the hostile work environment. A tangible employment action is defined as a

significant change in employment status, such as hiring, firing, failing to promote

16
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reassignment with significantly different responsibilities, or a decision causing

significant change in benefits.

[For use when the alleged harassment is by non-supervisary employees:
Ninth: Management level employees knew, or should have known, of the abusive
conduct. Management level employees should have known of (he abusive if 1) an
employee provided management level personnel with enough information to rise a
. probability of héuassrnent on grounds of disability [or request for accommodation]
in the mind of a reasonable employer, or if 2) the harassment was so pervasive
and open that a reasonable employer would have had to be aware ofit.]

[T will now provide you with more explicit instructions on the following statutory

terms;
1. “Disability” — Instruction 9.2.1

Under the ADA the term “Disability" means a [physical/mental]
impairment that “substantially” limits a “major life activity”,
2. "Qualified” - see instruction 9.2.2]
Under ADA, a “qualified individual” means that she had the skil},
experience, education and other requirements for the job, and could do the

job’s essential functions” either with or without an accommodation.

17
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Elements of an ADA Claim — Retaliation
(Plaintiff] claims that [defendant] discriminated again | her] because of
[plaintiff’s] {a third party’s] [describe protected activity) request for an accommedation.
To prevail on this claim, [plaintiff] must prove all of the following by a
| preponderance of the evidence:

First; [Plaintiff] {a third party] [describe activity protected by ADA] retaliation.

Second: [Plaintiff] was subjected to an adverse tangible employment action at the

lime, or after, the protected conduct took place.

Third: There was a causal connection hetween the tangible employment action

and [describe conduct by plaintiff or a third party].

Ever since plaintiff wrote to National Office regarding some concems on the job,
a campaign of retaliation has been staged against her. Then, on May 13, 2001, she was
managed by Sylvia Williams who told her a few weeks ago that said Ms. Williams was
promoted to checkouts manager. She is after another associate and plainti ff,‘ and the
same door plaintiff came through she will go through. On the momming portion of May
13, 2001, Ms. Williams was tnore so very loud mouth but it was with a customer Darryl
George who told her he will complain her to manﬁgement. Her fury lasted all day and
she treated plaintiff to the point that her morning break was not given to her. The second
portion of the day Ms. Williams she was still carrying on and even worst, Plaintiff
requ;asted a break and waited and waited yet nothing happened. The assistant manager,
Selwyn Scatliffe, passed by plaintiff's workstation several times. Plaintiff thought if the

manager seeing that plaintiff is due for a break or asked Ms. Williams, some form of

mediation might be worked out. Scatliffe did take a long time to pass through again. But
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when he did plaintiff inquired about the outcome of her question to Sylvia and his answer
was, “You will have to wait until a cashier comes in, said Sylvia”, Plaintiff continued 1o
wail as Ms. Williams disturbing loud mouth controlled the entire front end all the way to
Customer Service desk. After a while, plaintiff asked again for her break. Seeking it is
better for Ms. Williams to send her than for plaintiff to take the break herself. Ms
Williams told plaintiff to go and used plaintiff's absence to retaliate against plaintift,
Plaintiff had only gotten to the Jounge when Ms. Williams paged her and asked her to call
255, plaintiff answered the page. Ms. Williams told plaintiff to listen good and hung up

- on her. That page was heard by seven associates whom plaintiff was sitting with at the
tabie when plaintiff could not believe her ears and questioned if the page was for her and
all answered, “Yes™. Plaintiff has lost a few minutes due to the interruption of Ms.
Williams’ page. Plaintiff had only sat down again and had about 4 remaining minutes
before her break was over when, Ms. Williams again called telling plaintiff to come to
the checkout. Plaintiff decided to wait until her break was over because one supervisor
who knew of the occurrence told plaintiff not to go and to wait until her break Waé over.
Plaintiff went to Ms. Williams asked if she had call this time and Ms, Williams answered
yes. Plaintiff told her she was on break and the break was not over. Ms. Williams could
not tell plaintiff what she wanted. Plaintiff returned to her work. Plaintiff said to Ms.
Williars when she was leaving good bye and good night. Ms. Williams promised to
complain plaintiff to Mr. George, meaning George Newton. Plaintiff told Ms. Williams
she 15 very rude to plaintiff and to the customers also. Plaintiff retumn to work May 14,
2001 and Igna an associate told plaintiff thete is a plan to terminate you, When Ms.

Williams returned plaintiff requested of her to see Mr. Newton in return Ms. Williams
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told plaintiff he wants to see you too. When plaintiff got to the office Mr. Newton was in
his office waiting and fuming with anger. Mr. Newton questions plaintiff and cuts across
her making it impossible to give an answer. He managed to allow plaintiff to talk then
placed her on probation, Even though plaintiff had done nnlhing wraong, to come up with
10 rings per minute, based on the order and if plaintiff is unable to come up with 10 rings
per minute, her employment will be terminated. Plaintiff asked for training as an
accommodation she was denied. Plaintiff asked for relocation back to the sales floor that
too was denied and Mr. Newton further said any moving will be through the door.
Plaintiff told and reminded Mr. Newton of her struggles with mental iflness and that she
has a disability. Mr, Newton is not undecided; he has made up his mind there will be no
accommodations and he sent her away from his presence to Personnel/Human Resource
office. There plaintiff reunited with: Tracy who proceeded her to write up the document
for the probation. Tracy then gave it to plaintiff for comments and to sign and date.
Plaintiff wanted to keep the job she already had. Another chance was given to Mr.
Newton. She extended both for herself and Mr. N;awton that chance hoping he would
change his mind so that she would stil] keep her job, Mr. Newton came where plaintiff
was sent and wailing shouted in her face, there’ll be no accommodation for you. Tracy is
fixing your separation papers. As Mr. Newton repeated those words a look of scorn
‘emerged from his eyes and he actually Iaughed at plaintiff’s situation. Tracy returned
and through Tracy, Mr. Newton ordered her to take back all that belonged to Kmart that
was given to her. Plaintiff felt naked, abused, harassed, retaliated, discriminated and
aged due to a series of retaliatory actions. Plaintiff wag sent away without her salary and

had to ask for it. One would think when Kmart stripped plaintiff of all that belong to
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Kmart that Kmart would strip itself of all that does not belong to Kmart. From May 14,
2001, up to now, Kmart still has in its possession all that is still due to plaintiff including
her salary, Plain.tiff has come before the court to collect everything owed and due to her.

Concerning the first element, {plaintiff] need not prove the merits of [describe
conduct] retaliation, but only that [plaintiff] [a third party] was acting under a good faith
belief that [plaintiff’s] [or someone else’s] right to be [free from discﬁmiﬁatiun on the
basislof a disability} [frge to request an a(;,commodation for a disability] training or
relocation back to the sales floor ﬁas violated when defendant refused to accommodate
her.

Concerning the second element, a tangible employment action is defined as a
significant change in employment status, such as hiring, firing, failing to promote,
reassignment with significantly different rcsponsibiiities or a decision causing a
significant change in benefits.

Conceming the third element, that of causal connection, that connection may be

shown in many ways. For example, yuﬁ may or may not find that there is a sufficient
connection through timing, that is [defendant’s] action followed shortly after [defendant]
became aware of [describe activity] retaliatory action. Causation is, however, not
necessary ruled out by a‘mofe extended passage of time, Causation may or may not be
proven by antagonism shown towards {plaintiff] or a change in demeanor towards
[plaintiff].

[Plaintiff] can recover for retaliation even if [plaintiff] [a third party] did not have
a "disability” within the meaning of ADA. The question is not whether there was a

“disability“ but whether [defendant] retaliated for the [described protected activity of
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plaintiff/third party] retaliatory act started when plaintiff wrote to Kmart National office.
Ms. Williams told plaintiff she is after another customer and herself and that she would
send her through the door, plaintiff lcame through. And as manager, she could hire and
fire. Plaintiff’s breaks were a daily weapon. Plaintiff requested a break from Ms,
Williams, Ms, Williams'used that on two different occasions while on her break insulted
her at her first call and on the second call could not say why she had called her back to
the checkout before her break was ended. Ms. Williams took the matter to Mr. Newton
who in turn threatened pl;ﬁntiﬂ‘ with the same through the door experience that appeared
not to be coincidental. To cover the first acts of retaliation Mr. Newton used another
retaliation 1o cover these proceeding and issue a 30-day probationary sentence of 30 days.
Then Mr. Newton retatiated again and did not allow plaintiff to serve the probation just
because plaintiff requested an accommodation that will accommodate her disability and
allowed her the job she already has. Raging with anger shouted in plaintiff’s face there’ll
be no accommodation for you and in written form the statement could be found. The
final act was termination. Plaintiff had already served a 90-day f:mbatiun as a new
employee that fitted her for fulltime employment,

Ultimately, you must decide whether [describe activity] retaliation had a
“determinative effect” means that if not for [plaintiff’s] [other employee’s] [protected
activity], retaliatory act, the [adverse employment action] retaliation, discrimination, and

termination would not have occurred.
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ADA Definitions — Qualified Individual

Under the ADA, [plaintiff] must establish that [she] was a “qualified individual”,
This means that [plaintiff] must show that {she] had the skill, experience, education, and
other requirements for the [describe job] cashier and could do the jobs *‘essential
funetions”, either with or without [describe requested accommodation] training for a new
system or to relacate to the sales floor, If [plaintiff] cannot cstablish that [she] is
qualified to perform the essential of {describe joh)] cashier even with a [describe
accommodation], training for a new system or relocation to the sales floor then plaintiff is
nol a qualified individual withiﬁ the meaning of the ADA, you must return a verdict for
[defendant], even if the reason [plaintiff] is not qualified is solely as a result of [her]
disablity. Thc ADA does not require an employer (o hire or return an individual who
cannot perform the job with or without an accommodation.

In this case, [plaintiff] claims that [she] was able to perform the essential
functions of [describe job] cashier with [describe accommodation] training. [Defendant]
contends that [plaintiff] was unable to perform [describe function(s)} 10 rings per minute
and that this function were essential to the [describe job] cashier. It is [plaintiff’s] burden
to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that [she] was able to perform the essential
functions of [describe jol:;] cashier if [plaintiff] could not perform [describe function] 10
rings per minute that this was not essential to the [describe job] cashier.

In determining whether [plaintiff] could perform the essential functions of
[describe job] cashier you should keep in mind that not all job functions are “essential™.
The term “essential functions™ does not include the marginal functions of the position.

Essential functions are a job’s fundamental duties. In deciding whether [describe
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function] 10 rings per minute is essentjal to [describe job] cashier some factors you may

consider include the following:

1.

Whether the performance of the [describe function] 10 rings per minute is the

- reason that the [describe job] cashier exists;

[Defendant’s] judgment about what functions are essential to the [describe
job] cashier is a person hired to collect and keep a record of customer payment
as in a store, says Webster’s Dictionary. Therefore the esséntials to a cashiers
performance is to collect and keep record of customers payments;

The conscquences of not requiring an employee to [describe ﬁmctibn] 10
rings per minufe in 2 satisfactory manner. The unsatisfactory manner has led
the defendant to deny plaintiff a reasonable accommodation satisfactory to the
law that would have allowed her to keep the job she already has and the

consequences of defiance has brought justice to its behavior.
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ADA Definition — Qualified Individyal
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crmployee of the defendant, Kmatt. It pained so badly that she went straight way lo the
VI Dept of Labor and filed a charge of discrimination and Labor declared it a wrongful
discharge and filed on her behalf with EEOC who in turn sent her a letter to file with this
court a suit and here we are today addressing the wrongs done to her by the defendant,

Kmart even though plaintiff had the skills, experience and education.
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ADA Definitions — Qualified Individual

Under the ADA [plaintiff] must establish that [she] was a “qualified individual”.
This means that [plaintiff] must show that [she) had the skills, experience, education, and
other requirements for the {cashier job] and could do the job's “essential functions”,
either with or without [describe requested accommodation] training for the new system.
If [plaintiff] cannot establish that [she] is qualified to perform essential functions of
[descnibe job) cashier even with a reasonable accommodation then {plaintiff] is not a
qualified individual within the meaning of the ADA, you must return a verdict for
[defendant], even if the reason [plaintiff] is not qualified is solcly as a result of [her]
disability, The ADA does not require an employer to hire or retain an individual who
cannot perform the job with or without an accommodation.

In this case, [plaintiff] claims that [she] was able to perform the cssential
functions of [describe job] to cash or collect funds for merchandise purchased with or
without a reasonable accommodation. [Defendant] contends that [plaintiff] was unable to
perform [describe function] 10 rings per minute and that [this] function were essential to
the [describe job] cashier’s performance. It is [plaintiff’s] burden to prove by a
preponderance of the evidence that [she] wasl able to perform the essential functions of
[describe function] cashier. If [plaintiff] could not perform [describe function] to cash
collect funds for the exchange of merchandise, then it is [plaintiff’s] burden to show that
[describe function] 10 rings per minute that this was not essential to the [describe job)
cashier, a person hired to collect and keep a record of customer payments.

In determining whether [plaintiff] could perform the essential function of

[describe job) cashier, a person hired to keep record of customer payment, should keep in
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mind that not all job functions does not include the marginal functions of the position.
Essential functions are a job fundamental duties. In deciding whether [describe function]
10 nngs per minute is essential to [describe job] cashier, a person hired to collect and
keep a record of customer payments. Some factors you may consider including the
following: |

1. Whether the performance of the [descnbe function] 10 rings per minute is the
reason that the [describe job] cashier, a person hiréd to collect and keep a
record of customer payments. The answer is no,

2. [Defendant’s] judgment about what_ functions are essential to the [describe
job] cashier;

3. Writien job descriptions for the [describe job] cashier;

4. The consequences of not requiring an employee to [describe function] 10
rings per minute in a satisfactory manner. Defendant chose not to follow
guidelines;

5. Whether others who held the position of [desctibe job] cashier performed
[describe function] 10 rings per minute. Again the answer is no;

No one factor is necessarily controlling. You should consider all of the evidences in
deciding whether [describe function] 10 rings per minute is essential to {describe job]
cashier, a person hired to collect and keep a record of customer payments,

[In addition to specific job requirements, an employer may have general

requirements for all employees. For examﬁle, an employer may expect employees to
refrain from abusive or threatening conduct toward others, or may require a regular level

of attendance. These may be considered essential functions of the job.]
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In assessing whether {plaintiff) was qualified to perform the essential functions of
[describe job] cashier you should consider [plaintiff’s] ability as they existed at the time
when [describe challenged employment action] wrongful discharge of plaintiff and gave
her a probationary period of 30 days to come up with 10 rings per minute and did not
alluﬁ her to serve the probationary period. Defendant was requested to accommodate her
disability with a reasonable accommodation. Hearing the request again, defendant
changed the probation into termination and gave no reason for the dischargé, except to

say it is the denial of a reasonable accommodation. The VI Department of Labor called it

a wrongful discharge and filed a claim with EEQC, who sent plaintiff the right to sue

lIetter to file with the court.
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ADA Definition — Hostile or Abusive Work Environment
In determining whether a work environment is “hostile” you must look at all of
the circumstances, which may include:
1. The total physical environment of [plaintiff’s] work area;
2. The degree and type of language and insult that filled the environment before
and after [plaintiff] arrived;
3. The reasonable expectations of [plaintiff}] upon entcring the environment;
4. The frequency of the offensivé conduct;
5. The severity of the conduct;
6. The f.‘-ff(‘:Ct‘ of the working environment on [plaintiff’s] mental and emotional
well-being; ’
7. Whether the conduct was unwelcome, that is, conduct [plaintiff] regarded as
unwanted or unpleasant;
8. Whether the conduct was pervasive;
9, Whetht;r the conduct was directed towards Iplaintiff];
10. Whether the conduct was merely a tasteless remark;
11. Whether the conduct unreasonable interfered with [plaintiff’s] work
performance.
Conduct that amounts only to ordinary socializing in the workplace, such as occasional
horseplay, occasional use of abusive language, tasteless jokes, and occasional teasing,

does not constitute an abusive or hostile work environment. A hostile work environment

can be found only if there is extreme conduct amounting to a material change in the terms
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and conditions of emplayment. Moreaver, isolated incidents, unless extremely serious,
will not amount to a hostile work environment,

It is not enough that the work environment was generally hash, unfriendly,
unpleasant, crude or vulgar to all employees. In order to find a hostile work environment,
you must find that (plaintiff] was harassed because of [her] disability [or request for
accommodation.] The harassing conduct may, but need not be spéciﬁcally dirgctcd at
[plaintiff’s] disability for request for accommodation,] The key question is whether
[plaintiff], as a person with [plaintiff’s disability] mental impairment was subject to hash
employment conditions to which employees without # disahility were not.

It is important to understand that, in determining whether a hostile work
environment exist at the [employer’s workplace] Kmart. You must consider the evidence
from the perspective of a reasonable person with [plaintiff disability] in the same
position. That is you must determine whether a reasonable person with [plaintiff's
disability] would have been offended or harmed by the conduct in question. You must
cvaluate the total circumstances and determine whether the alleged harassing behavior
could be objectively classified as the kind of behavior that would seriously affect the
psychological or emotional well being of a reasonable person with [plaintiff’s disability].
The reasonable person with [plaintiff's disability] is simple one of normal sensitivity and

emotional make up.

31



S e

Case 02-02474 Doc 31952-9 Filed 04/30/09 Entered 05/06/09 12:50:53 Desc
] Document Continued Page 45 of 50 .

ADA Damages — Compensatory Damages General Instruction

I am now going to instruct you on damages. iust because | am instructing you on
how to award damages does not mean that T have any opinion on whether or not
[defendant] should be held liable.

If you find by a preponderance of the evidence that [defendant] violated
[plaintiff’s] rights under the ADA by [describe conduct]. Plaintiff had been experiencing
some very serious stages of harassment to include the denial of her breaks and a coupon

-incident. That day, it was very painful, embarrassing, weary and abusive. On May 13,
2001, by my checkout’s manager, Sylvia Williams, Darry George, a customer, was at
another associate’s counter. Both he and Sylvia had words. Sylvia was loud and
disrespectful to the customer who threatened Sylvia, that he would report her to
management. Plaintiff was serving a lady who in the midst’s of things one could see that
she scemed affected by the noise and making her payment gave me a coupon of lesser
value, then changed her mind for another of greater value, after plaintiff had already
processed and placed the lesser valued coupon in the slot. |

Plaintiff would have to retrieve the coupon by calling on Sylvia to open the
drawer becausc plaintiff is not allowed to open the cash register drawer under any
circumstances. Plaintiff kindly called upon Sylvia to assist her but her fierce anger and
wrath was tumed from Darryl to plaintiff. All day, Sylvia’s inhumane treatment was felt,
Sylvia did not let up all day. At the end of plaintiff's shift, plaintiff told Sylvia good
night, good-bye. Sylvia promised to complain her to Mr. Newton, the following day.
Plaintiff told her she will also complain to him. Monday, May 14, 2001, plaintiff

reported 1o work on the 11 am to 8 pm shift. She was told by a fellow associate there is a
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plan to terminate her employment. Both Mr. Newton and plaintiff wanted to see each
other. A time was set and plaintiff went in Mr. Newton’s presence. Mr. Newton was
very angry so that when plaintiff started to talk she could not. He will interrupt her on
several occasions. Plaintiff told Mr. Newton when he did scarcely allowed her to tell of
her abuse about her severe treatment and denial of her breaks. Mr. Newton said‘ Sylvia
should have given to plaintiff her break. He is stiil angry. Plaintiff told him about the
coupon. Mr. Ncwtcm said, “A simple coupon you can’t get done?” Plaintiff told Mr.
Newton that is not true, and Sylvia had to retrieve it. Plaintiff is not allowed to. He had
his answers but still very angry with p]ainliﬂ'thsn told plaintiff he is putting her on a 30
days probation to see if she can come up with 10 rings per minute, He also congratulated
plaintiff and reminded her that she was doing better than the other cashiers in her work
performance. But, if she is unable to come up with 10 rings per minute, he will terminate
Plaintiff's employment with Kmart. Mr, Newton plaintiff said, “She has been trying”,
How is it done and questioned what are you going to do with the others whose
productivity is less than plaintiff’s, Same thing I do to you. Plaintiff begged him for the
knowledge. He refused to tell plaintiff. Plaintiff asked him for training as an
accomrmodation for she has her struggles with mental illness and reminded him that she is
disabled. He refused to assist her knowledge. Then may I be moved back to the sales
floor as an accommodation. Mr. Newton told plaintiff any moving would be through the
door and sent plaintiff away from his presence to where Tracy had gone to the Human
Resource Office. Tracy, plaintiff, and Mr, Newton were all in Mr. Newton’s fo_ice.
Tracy was to write up the probation order, Plaintiff was to make her comments and

Tracy was to bring back the order that affirned her need in writing. Mr. Newton came
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back where plaintiff was sent and waited and again told plaintiff there’l] be no
accommodation for you as he shouted in her face. Then through his eyes a look of scom
emerged from his face and he actually laughed at plaintiff’s situation. Plaintiff was
respeciful and answered not a word. She was shamed by him and yet hoped he would
change his mind but he did not even though he was reminded in writing on the probation
order. Plaintiff was hoping she could save the job she aiready had. Plaintiff was not
allowed to even serve the probationary period of 30 days. Mr. Newton did not allow
accommodation. The probation was now tumed into termination; Tracy returned and
fixed the order of termination. Plaintiff made her response and after that Mr. Newton
signed the order. Plaintiff was stripped of everything Kmar{ had given to her for use.
Plaintiff felt run over and abused. Plainti{f was told she can leave. She questioned, are
glou sending me away without my salary too? Tracy said sorry and offered plaintiff
$520.00. Plaintiff told Tracy that the mﬁney was incorrect and more 1s due to her than is
offered. Tracy was to call plaintiff when they have it corrected. Plaintiff waited and
asked and up to now, Kmart still has her salary, benefits, pension and vacation pay for
her. Plaintiff was stripped of what was given to her but Kmart never stripped itself to
return what which is rightfully hers. No reason was given 1o her for the discharge. But it
was her seeking an accommodation that cavsed her to loose her job that she already had.
An accommodation could have saved her job, All other cashiers are still employed, they
were to be reviewed, plaintiff was to serve probation then termination. She is still
unemployed through the wrongful discharge.

Then you must consider the issue of compensation damages. You must award

[plaintiff] an amount that will fairly compensate [her] for injury [she] actually sustained

34




Case 02-02474 Doc 31952-9 Filed 04/30/09 Entered 05/06/09 12:50:53 Desc
Document Continued Page 48 of 50

as a result of [defendant’s] conduct. The damages that you award must be fair
compen;aation, no more and no less. The award of compensatory damages is meant to put
[plaintiff] in the position [she] would have occupied if the discrimination had not
occurred. [Plaintiff] has the burden of proving damages by a preponderance of the
evidence.

[Plaintiff] must show that the injury would not have occurred without
[defendant’s] act [or omission]. Plaintiff must also show that [defendant] act [or
omission] played a substantial part in bringing about the injury, and that the injury was
either a direct result or a reasonable probable consequence of [defendant’s] act [or
omission]. This test — a substantial part in bringing about the injury — is to be
distinguished from the test you must employ in determining whether [defendant’s]
actions [or omissions] were motivated by discrimination. In other words, even assuming
that [defendant’s] actions [or omissions] were motivated by discrimination, [plaintiff] is
not entitled to damages for any injury unless [defendant’s] discriminatory actions actually
played a substantial part in bringing about that injury.

[There can be more than one cause of an injury. To find that [defendant’s] acts
[or omission] caused [plaintiff’s] injury you need not find that [defendant] act [or
omission] was the nearest cause, either in time or space. However, if {plaintiff’s] injury
was caused by a later, independent event that intervened between [dcfcndant’s] act [or
omission] and [plaintiff’s] injury, [defendant] is not liable unless the injury was
reasonably foreseeable by [defendant]. In determining the amount of any damages that

you decide to award, you should be guided by common sense. You must use sound
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in the future, or may have to take a job that pays less than if the act of discrimination had
not occurred, That element of damages is distinct from the amount of wages [plaintiff]
would have earned in the future from [defendant] if [she] had retained the job, Asl
instructed you previously, [plaintiff] has the burden of proving damapes by a
preponderance of the evidence. But the Law does not require that [plaintiff] prove the
amount of [her] losses with mathematical precision; it requires only as much definiteness
and accuracy as circumstances permit,

‘fou are instructed that [plaintiff] has a duty under the law to “miti gate” [her]
damages - that means that [plaintiff] must {ake advantage of any reasonable opportunity
that may have existed under the circumstances to reduce or minimize the loss or damage
caused by [defendant]. It is [defendant’s) burden to prove that plaintiff has failed to
mitiggtc. So if {defendant] pcrsuades you by a preponderance of the evidence that
[plaintiff] failed to take advantage of an opportunity that was reasonably available to
[her], ihen you must reduce the amount of [plaintiff’s] damages by the amount that could
have bccﬁ reasonable obtained if ['she had taken advantage of such an opportunity].

In assessing damages, you must not consider attorney fees and costs, if relevant at
all, are for the court and niot for the jury to determine. Therefore, attorney fees and cost

should play no part in your calculations of any damages.
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